SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION

OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 139 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION ANNUITY FUND

June 1, 2021

Important Note

This booklet is called a Summary Plan Description ("SPD") and is intended to provide a brief description of the Plan's features. Complete details of the Plan are contained in the Plan document. If there is a difference between this SPD and the Plan document, the Plan document (available from the Fund Office) will govern. The information provided on taxes is general in nature and may not apply to your personal circumstances. You should consult a tax advisor for more information.

Plan Highlights

The following information contains highlights of the Plan.
Please read the entire Summary Plan Description for more details.

Joining the Plan

You will become a participant in the Operating Engineers Local 139 Defined Contribution Annuity Fund (the "Plan") on the first day that your employer is required to contribute to the Plan on your behalf.

Employee Rollover Contributions

In certain circumstances, you may elect to have benefits earned under another eligible retirement plan transferred or rolled over to your Account under this Plan. You may also roll over funds held in a traditional Individual Retirement Account ("IRA").

Employer Contributions

Your employer makes contributions to the Plan on your behalf based on the terms of the collective bargaining agreement with the Union, or such other written agreement with the Trustees.

Managing your investments

You are permitted to direct the investment of your Account. For this purpose, the Plan offers a range of investment options. You may change the investment of your Account balance at any time.

Vesting

You will always be fully vested in any rollover contributions you make, and any employer contributions made on your behalf to the Plan. This means you have full ownership of your contributions and the earnings in your Account.

Accessing your account

The Plan allows limited withdrawals from your Account prior to retirement. Taxes may be due on these withdrawals..

Retirement

When you retire, or otherwise cease covered employment and there have been no contributions made by your employer on your behalf for at least 24 consecutive months, you may elect to have all, or a portion, of your Account paid to you as a distribution or transferred to an Individual Retirement Account (IRA) or to another eligible retirement plan. If your account balance exceeds \$5,000, you may also elect to defer distribution of your Account.

Obtaining More Information

If you have any questions about the Plan, you can obtain information from your local Fund Office. In addition, you can write or call the Trustees.

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
CONTACTING THE FUND OFFICE OR THE TRUSTEES	1
CONTACTING JOHN HANCOCK (WEBSITE AND PHONE SERVICE)	1
IMPORTANT DEFINITIONS	2
JOINING THE PLAN	3
PARTICIPANT ROLLOVERS	3
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS	3
MANAGING YOUR INVESTMENTS	4
FLEXIBILITY	5
FEES AND EXPENSES PAID FROM YOUR ACCOUNT	5
ACCESSING YOUR ACCOUNT	6
VESTING	8
WHEN BENEFITS WILL BE PAID	8
HOW BENEFITS WILL BE PAID	8
DEATH BENEFIT	9
DISABILITY	10
FFFCT ON OTHER BENEFITS	10

OTHER IMPORTANT FACTS	10
STATEMENTS OF YOUR ACCOUNT	12
CLAIMS PROCEDURES	12
YOUR ERISA RIGHTS AND INFORMATION	13

Introduction

This is a summary of the Plan Document that governs the Operating Engineers Local 139 Defined Contribution Annuity Fund (the "Plan"). It is intended to give you a summary of the major features of the Plan. If there are any inconsistencies between the contents of this summary and the Plan document, your rights will be determined from the Plan document and not from this summary.

Chances are, you're hoping for a long and fulfilling retirement. A significant part of how rewarding your retirement experience will be depends on how well you have planned for it. The purpose of the Plan is to help you accumulate the assets you will need for your retirement. The investment earnings on your Account under the Plan will also accumulate tax-free until distributed from the Plan. Your personal financial security is one of life's most important objectives. The Union, Associations and the Contributing Employers share your concern and offer the Plan to help you build a strong financial future.

Contacting the Fund Office

You, your beneficiaries, or your legal representative may examine the documents that govern the Plan during regular business hours by visiting your local Fund Office at:

Operating Engineers Local 139 Defined Contribution Annuity Fund N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072 (262) 549-9190

Participants and beneficiaries should not rely upon any oral description of the Plan because the written terms of the Plan will always govern. No Employer, Union, or any representative of any Employer or Union, in such capacity, is authorized to interpret the Plan nor can any such person act as agent of the Trustees. The Trustees reserve the right to amend, modify, or discontinue any or all parts of the Plan whenever, in their judgement, conditions so warrant.

Contacting John Hancock (Website and Phone Service)

To help with your retirement planning, many features of the Plan are available to you by contacting John Hancock Retirement Plan Services LLC ("John Hancock") via the Internet at https://myplan.johnhancock.com or over an automated telephone system (833.388-6466). If you wish to contact John Hancock, you may do so:

- 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, via the Internet at myplan.johnhancock.com or an automated telephone system at 833.388.6466.
- 7 AM to 9 PM Central Time ("CT") on any business day the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") is open ("NYSE business day") by calling 800.294.3575 to speak with a Participant Service Representative.

This service enables you to obtain information about your Plan Account, request Account statements, and under certain circumstances, make changes to your investment elections. You can contact John Hancock or the Fund Office if you have any questions about using this service.

NOTE: The Plan Administrator must have current contact information in order to provide you with important Plan information and/or to make a payment to you from the Plan. It is your responsibility to keep the Fund Office (and John Hancock if you are no longer an active employee) advised of any changes to your contact information (for example, your change of address). Your failure to do so may result in the Plan's inability to pay any benefits to which you are entitled, and as a result may subject you to tax penalties.

Important Definitions

First, let's define the following terms to be used in this SPD:

Account means your account under the Plan, including contributions rolled over by you and contributions made by your Contributing Employer, as adjusted for investment gains and losses, and operating expenses.

Association means the Pipe Line Contractors Association, Distribution Contractors Association, Associated Earth Movers, Wisconsin Transportation Employers Council, Allied Construction Employers Association, and the Associated General Contractors of Greater Milwaukee and any association added to the Declaration of Trust by amendment approved by the Trustees.

Contribution Agreement means a collective bargaining agreement with the Union, or other written agreement with the Trustees, which specifies the contributions to be made to the Plan by your employer.

Contributing Employer means an employer who participates in the Plan pursuant to the terms of a Contribution Agreement. If you would like to know if an employer participates in the Plan, you may request that information in writing from the Trustees or contact the Fund Office.

Disability means your "total and permanent" disability. For Plan purposes, you are totally and permanently disabled only after a determination by the Social Security Administration that you are entitled to a Social Security Disability Benefit.

Early Retirement Date means the date on which you have a severance from employment after attaining Early Retirement Age, meeting at least one the early retirement conditions, and making a valid election to receive (or commence) distribution from the Plan. Early Retirement Age is age 55. The early retirement conditions are: you have retired from the Central Pension Fund; you retire and there have been no employer contributions to the Plan on your behalf for 3 consecutive months; you incur a Disability.

Normal Retirement Date means the day you attain age 60 (your "Normal Retirement Age") and make a valid election to receive (or commence) distribution from the Plan.

Plan means the Operating Engineers Local 139 Defined Contribution Annuity Fund.

Plan Year means the period in which administrative and financial records of the Plan are maintained. The Plan Year is the 12-month period beginning June 1 and ending May 31. The first Plan Year is a short Plan Year beginning November 1, 2020 and ending May 31, 2021.

Trustees mean the Board of Trustees, the members of which are appointed by the Union and the Associations to administer the Plan.

Union means the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 139.

Joining the Plan

If you are working for a Contributing Employer, you will automatically become a participant in the Plan as of the date contributions are required to be made on your behalf by the Contributing Employer under the terms of the Contribution Agreement.

When you first become eligible to participate in the Plan, enrollment materials will be provided to you. You may enroll in the Plan, and make investment elections, by contacting John Hancock. You must also contact John Hancock to select your beneficiary under the Plan. If you do not properly select your beneficiary, your beneficiary will be your surviving spouse, or, if none, your children (by right of representation), or if non your surviving parents, or if none your estate. Refer to the "Death Benefit" section of this SPD for more information.

You should contact the Board of Trustees if you have any questions concerning your eligibility to participate in the Plan.

Military Service

If you leave employment for certain periods of military service and return to covered employment you will be credited with vesting service and employer contributions in accordance with the rules under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994.

You will generally be credited with the hours of service for each week of military duty that is equal to the average weekly hours of service you completed during the one-year period (or shorter period if you had not been employed for a full year) immediately preceding the period of military duty.

Participant Rollovers

This section describes the contributions you can make to the Plan.

Your Rollover Contributions

In certain circumstances, you may elect to have benefits earned under another qualified plan, a 403(b) plan, or a governmental 457 plan transferred or rolled over to your Account under this Plan. In general, you may also roll over funds held in a conduit IRA (that is an IRA that consists solely of amounts rolled over from an eligible retirement plan) or a traditional IRA. In any case, you cannot roll over after-tax or Roth contributions. You should contact John Hancock if you are interested in making a rollover contribution.

Employer Contributions

This section describes the contributions your employer may make on your behalf.

Each Contributing Employer employing you during the Plan Year will make a contribution to the Plan on your behalf in an amount determined under the applicable Contribution Agreement.

You should contact the Fund Office if you have any questions concerning the contributions which may be made on your behalf by your Contributing Employer, or the calculation of any contributions made on your behalf.

Managing Your Investments

You are permitted to direct the investment of your Account under the Plan. You will be offered a range of investment options for this purpose. Your initial investment election(s) must be made among the available individual investment options in 1% increments. Any subsequent changes may be made in 1% increments by contacting John Hancock. Different investment options may be offered from time to time and you will be informed in advance of any changes. If you do not make an investment election for your Account, your pre-tax contributions will be invested in the qualified default investment alternative (QDIA) under the Plan.

Additional information concerning the available investment options and the QDIA will be provided separately. You will receive the most recent prospectus for a mutual fund option you select. Additional copies are available by contacting John Hancock or from the Fund Office. You should be aware that the terms of any such prospectus may limit your investment elections with respect to the underlying mutual fund option.

NOTE: The Plan is intended to constitute a Plan described in Section 404(c) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA"). Section 404(c) is a provision providing special rules for participant-directed plans, like ours, that permit participants to exercise control over the assets in their Accounts. If a Plan complies with Section 404(c), the Plan's fiduciaries will not be liable for poor investment performance or losses resulting directly from participant-directed investment decisions. This means you are responsible for your investment decisions under the Plan.

You have the right to receive the following information upon request:

- 1 A description of the annual operating expenses of each standard investment option and the aggregate amount of such expenses expressed as a percentage of average net assets.
- 2 Copies of any updated prospectuses, financial statements and reports and other information furnished to the Plan relating to each such investment option.
- 3 A semi-annual listing of assets comprising the portfolio of each standard investment option, the value of such assets (or the proportion of the investment option which it comprises) and, with respect to each asset which is a fixed rate investment contract issued by a bank, savings and loan association or insurance company, the name of the issuer of the contract, the term of the contract and the rate of return of the contract.
- 4 Information concerning the value of shares or units in each investment option, as well as the past and current investment performance of each investment option.
- 5 Information concerning the value of shares or units in each investment option held in your Account.

The Trustees, as Plan Administrator, are responsible for providing the above information. The contact information for the Trustees is set forth in the "Other Important Facts" section of this SPD. However, the above information can also be obtained by contacting John Hancock.

For more information about your investment options, including fees and expenses, please consult the prospectuses.

Flexibility

Changing Investments

Nearly everyone's personal financial situation is likely to change over the years. Because of this, the Plan offers you the flexibility to change your investment elections.

You may change your investment election for future contributions allocated to your Account, and/or your investment election for your existing Account balance, by contacting John Hancock. Investment election changes made and confirmed before 3:00 PM CT on any NYSE business day will generally be effective as of the close of that day. A change confirmed on or after 3:00 PM CT, or on weekends or holidays, will generally be effective as of the close of the next NYSE business day. In the event the NYSE closes prior to 3:00 PM CT on any business day, a change made and confirmed before the time the NYSE closes will generally be effective as of the close of that day. A change made or confirmed on or after such closing time will generally be effective as of the close of the next NYSE business day. In the event an investment option does not have sufficient liquidity to meet same day redemption requests, your change will be effective as soon as administratively possible thereafter.

NOTE: There may be limitations on your ability to direct the investment of your Account under the Plan. Policies established by mutual funds may impose redemption fees on certain transactions and also may impose restrictions or limitations on frequent or excessive trading. The Plan Administrator will enforce the funds' policies on redemption fees and trading restrictions or limitations as Plan rules. As a result, if your investment direction violates a fund's trading restriction or limitation, your action may result in redemption fees being assessed to your Account or your investment directions may be declined. In some circumstances, your ability to make additional investments in a fund may be suspended or terminated. Please refer to the underlying prospectus(es) and other fund information for further details on the funds' policies on redemption fees and trading restrictions or limitations. You may also obtain related information by contacting John Hancock.

NOTE ALSO: Any transaction confirmed before the NYSE closes on any business day cannot be canceled after the NYSE closes on that day. Any transaction confirmed after the NYSE closes, or on weekends or holidays, cannot be canceled after the NYSE closes on the next business day.

Confirmation of the change to your contribution percentage and/or your investment election will be provided to you.

Fees and Expenses Paid From Your Account

Whenever you take a distribution or withdrawal, or whenever you provide a domestic relations order for review and qualification, transaction fees may be taken directly from your Account. Transaction fees include the following:

- Non-periodic distribution fee (for processing a lump sum distribution, a partial distribution or an in-service withdrawal).
- Periodic payment distribution fee (for processing an installment payment or a required minimum distribution).

•

• Qualified Domestic Relations Order fee (for review and qualification of a domestic relations order).

In addition to the fees described above, your Account may be charged a share of the Plan's administrative expenses and/or investment related expenses.

Applicable fees also apply to the Account of each alternate payee and each beneficiary.

For more information, you should check the Plan's most recent fee disclosure documents. Fee information may also be obtained by contacting John Hancock.

Accessing Your Account

One of the most commonly asked questions about the Plan is, "Can I get my money out of the Plan?" Since the primary purpose of the Plan is to encourage long-term retirement savings, distribution of your vested Account normally cannot be made before your retirement, Disability, or before you otherwise cease covered employment and there have been no contributions made on your half by your employer for at least 24 consecutive months. However, before you become eligible to take a distribution due to retirement, Disability or termination of Covered Employment, you may withdraw money, under certain circumstances. In-service withdrawals under the Plan may be subject to limitations, in addition to those described below, established by the Trustees, as Plan Administrator, in order to anticipate changes in the value of your Account due to market fluctuations. In addition, you can contact John Hancock for information on the order in which your Accounts will be reduced to fund your in-service withdrawals.

Hardship Withdrawals

Under the Plan, you are permitted to withdraw a portion of your vested Account if you are not eligible to take a distribution due to retirement, Disability or termination of Covered Employment, and your experience one of the following financial hardships:

- purchase of your principal residence.
- payment of unreimbursed medical expenses incurred by you, your spouse, or dependents, or to permit you, your spouse, or your dependents to obtain medical care.
- payment of tuition and "related expenses" (as defined under federal law) for the next 12 months of postsecondary education (for example, college, graduate school and/or equivalent courses) for you, your spouse, your children, or your dependents.
- payment to prevent eviction from your principal residence or foreclosure on the mortgage of your principal residence.
- payment of funeral or burial expenses for your deceased parent, spouse, children, or dependents (as defined in Section 152 of the Code, without regard to Section 152 (d)(1)(B) of the Code).
- payment to repair damage to your principal residence that would qualify for a casualty loss deduction under Section 165 of the Code (determined without regard to whether the loss exceeds ten percent (10%) of your adjusted gross income and without regard to whether the loss is as a result of a federally declared disaster).

 expenses and losses (including loss of income) you (not your spouse or other person) incur due to certain FEMA declared disasters, if your principal residence or principal place of employment at the time of the disaster is located in an area designated by FEMA for individual assistance with respect to the disaster.

Any hardship withdrawal will be taken pro rata from the investment options in which your available Account is invested.

If you are married, you must obtain your spouse's written consent when you apply for a hardship withdrawal. Your spouse's written consent must be notarized or witnessed by a Plan representative.

You may withdraw the amount needed to satisfy your hardship, and you may elect to increase the amount withdrawn to cover any applicable tax withholding on the withdrawal. The maximum withdrawal amount is your vested Account balance.

To be approved for a hardship withdrawal, you will have to prove financial hardship, including certifying that you have insufficient cash or other liquid assets reasonably available to meet your need. Consideration will be given to the nature of your financial need, the documentation you provide, and whether you have exhausted other currently available Plan distributions (other than hardship distributions).

The amount you withdraw for financial hardship will be subject to optional federal income tax withholding, and state tax withholding if applicable. If you are under age 59½, an additional 10% penalty tax may apply. You may request a hardship withdrawal by contacting the Fund Office. You should, however, consult with your tax advisor before exercising this option.

Hardship withdrawals under the Plan are subject to rules and procedures established by the Trustees, as Plan Administrator, and may be changed from time to time. You may only take 1 hardship withdrawal in any 24-consecutive month period. In addition, in the same twenty-four (24) month period you may not take both a hardship withdrawal and a voluntary withdrawal.

Voluntary Withdrawals

If you have 5 years of participation in the Plan, and if you are not eligible to take a distribution due to retirement, Disability or termination of Covered Employment, you may elect to withdraw all or any portion of your vested Account balance. In addition, if you are not eligible to take a distribution due to retirement, Disability or termination of Covered Employment, you may withdraw all or a portion of your vested Account balance attributable to contributions which have accumulated under the Plan for at least two (2) years. If you are married, you must obtain your spouse's written consent when you apply for a hardship withdrawal. Your spouse's written consent must be notarized or witnessed by a Plan representative.

Withdrawals are subject to rules and procedures as may be established by the Plan Administrator. You may take only 1 voluntary withdrawal in any 48-consecutive month period measured from the date of your most recent voluntary withdrawal. In addition, in the same twenty-four (24) month period you may not take both a hardship withdrawal and a voluntary withdrawal.

Any withdrawal will be taken pro rata from the investment options in which your Account is invested.

Your withdrawal may be subject to mandatory 20% federal income tax withholding and state tax withholding, if applicable. If you are under age 59½, an additional 10% penalty tax may apply.

You may request a voluntary withdrawal by contacting the Fund Office. You should, however, consult with a tax advisor for more information.

Vesting

Vesting means ownership. You are always 100% vested (in other words, you have complete ownership) in any contributions made on your behalf by a Contributing Employer and in any rollover contributions you may have made to the Plan (in both cases adjusted for investment gains and losses).

When Benefits Will Be Paid

You may elect to receive a distribution from the Plan:

- in the event of your death
- in the event of Disability;
- on or after reaching your Early Retirement Date or Normal Retirement Date, or
- regardless of your age, after termination of Covered Employment if there have not been any Employer contributions to your Account for at least 24 consecutive months.

You are also permitted to defer your distribution if your Account balance exceeds \$1,000. However, you should be aware that distribution of your Account must be made or commence no later than April 1 following the year you attain age 72 (age 70½ if you were born on or before June 30, 1949) or, if later, following the year you cease covered employment.

NOTE: If you are eligible to receive (or commence) distribution, there have been no employer contributions on your behalf to the Plan for 60 consecutive months, and you have not requested payment (or commencement of payment) of your benefit under the Plan, your Account balance may be forfeited until such time as you make a claim for benefits. Once you make a claim for benefits, your Account balance will be restored, unadjusted for gain or loss during the period it was forfeited.

How Benefits Will Be Paid

Retirement Distributions

Account Balance Exceeds \$5,000

If your Account balance exceeds \$5,000, then unless you elect otherwise (with spousal consent as described below) your vested Account will be distributed in the form of an annuity.

If you are not married, the annuity will be in the form of a single life annuity and will provide equal monthly payments for your life (and upon your death all payments cease).

If you are married, the annuity will be in the form of a 50% joint and survivor annuity (though you will also have the option to elect a 75% joint and survivor annuity). Under this form of annuity, you will receive monthly payments for your life, and upon your death, your spouse, if he or she survives you, will receive monthly payments for his or her life equal to 50% (or 75%, if elected by you) of the monthly payments you were receiving at your death.

You may also elect to waive the annuity and receive your Account in a single-sum payment, , or in installments (monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual) over a period of time not longer than 15 years. If you wish to waive the annuity, you may do so not more than 180 days, nor less than 7 days, before the annuity is to begin. In addition, if you are married, you must obtain your spouse's written consent to receive

a benefit other than a joint and survivor annuity for you and your spouse. Your spouse's consent must be notarized or witnessed by a Plan representative. The Trustees will provide you with the necessary forms to make this election. Because your spouse participates in this election, you must immediately inform the Trustees of any change in your marital status. If you do not waive the annuity, the amount of your annuity will depend upon the value of your Account, your marital status on the date distribution begins, and the ages of you and your spouse, if you are married. The Plan will purchase an annuity contract from an insurance company with your Account balance to provide this annuity.

Account Balance is \$5,000 or less but more than \$1,000

If your Account balance is less than \$5,000 but more than \$1,000, then the only distribution option available is a single lump sum payment.

Account Balance is \$1,000 or less

If your vested Account is \$1,000 or less, unless you elect otherwise, your entire vested Account will be paid to you in a single-sum payment as soon as administratively possible following your retirement or other termination of employment. You are not permitted to maintain your Account balance in the Plan.

Income Taxes on Your Distribution

Whenever you receive a distribution from the Plan, it will normally be subject to income taxes. To provide for the resulting taxes, unless you receive your distribution in the form of an annuity, or installments over a period of at least 10 years, your distribution may be subject to mandatory 20% federal income tax withholding and may also be subject to any applicable state income tax withholding. However, you may be able to defer income taxes on your distribution by electing to have your distribution paid directly to an IRA or to another qualified employer-sponsored retirement plan (with spousal consent, if required).

If you are younger than age 59½ when you receive your distribution, any amount you receive may be subject to a 10% federal excise tax (penalty tax) in addition to any applicable federal and state income taxes. However, the 10% penalty tax will not apply to distributions made in the form of an annuity or installments over your expected life (or joint life expectancy), distributions made if you retire or cease covered employment in the calendar year in which you turn age 55; distributions made to your beneficiary in the event of your death; or if you transfer your distribution directly to an IRA or to another qualified employer-sponsored retirement plan.

You may obtain a distribution election form from the Fund Office. You will be provided with more information concerning your distribution options when you apply for benefits under the Plan. However, you should contact a tax advisor prior to making your distribution election.

Death Benefit

If you die before distribution of your Account has commenced, your beneficiary will be entitled to receive the full value of your Account.

You may choose anyone to be your beneficiary under the Plan, by completing a Beneficiary Designation Form which can be obtained by contacting the Fund Office. To be valid, the Beneficiary Designation form must be properly competed and returned as described on the form. However, under federal law, if you are married and wish to name someone other than your spouse as your beneficiary, you may do so only with your spouse's written consent. Your spouse's written consent must be notarized or witnessed by a Plan representative. If you fail to designate a beneficiary, or if your designated beneficiary dies before you do,

the Plan provides that your death benefit will be paid automatically to your surviving spouse, or, if none, your surviving issue (by right of representation), or if none, your surviving parents, or if none your estate..

Distribution of any death benefit under the Plan will normally be made, in the form of a single-sum payment, as soon as administratively possible following your death.

If you are married as of the date of your death, and if your spouse is your beneficiary, the portion of your Account payable to your spouse may be used to purchase an annuity for your surviving spouse. Thus, your surviving spouse may receive monthly payments for his or her lifetime. The amount of the monthly payments will depend upon the value of such portion of your Account at the time of your death. Your surviving spouse may, however, elect to waive the annuity and receive your Account in a single-sum payment.

NOTE: If the value of your Account does not exceed \$5,000, your Account will be paid to your surviving spouse, or other beneficiary, in a single-sum payment.

Disability

If you terminate covered employment as a result of your Disability you will be entitled to receive distribution from the Plan. Distributions to persons under the age of 59½ because of Disability may qualify for exclusion from the 10% penalty tax previously described.

Effect on Other Benefits

Your contributions to the Plan will not affect other salary-related benefits, such as life insurance and disability benefits. Also, making contributions will not change the amount of your Social Security benefits or the Social Security taxes that are withheld from your pay.

Other Important Facts

The Board of Trustees is the Plan Sponsor ("Plan Sponsor").

The Plan Sponsor's address, telephone number and federal employer identification number (EIN) are:

Board of Trustees, Operating Engineers Local 139 Defined Contribution Annuity Fund N 27 W23233 Roundly Drive

Pewaukee, WI 53072 Phone: 262-549-9190 EIN: 86-6489984

- The Plan Sponsor also serves as the Plan Administrator.
- The Plan Year is the 12-month period beginning June 1 and ending May 31. The initial Plan Year is a short Plan Year beginning November 1, 2020 and ending May 31, 2021.
- The Plan Sponsor has been designated as agent for service of legal process. Legal process may also be served on the Trustees.
- The Plan is a profit sharing plan and the number assigned to the Plan by the Plan Sponsor is 001.

- The trust fund is the funding medium used for accumulating Plan assets from which Plan benefits will be distributed. The Plan Administrator separately accounts for each participant's interest in the Plan.
- The current Trustees of the Plan are:

UNION TRUSTEES	EMPLOYER TRUSTEES
Terrance E. McGowan, Chairman N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072	Matthew Westphal, Secretary Pipe Line Contractors Association 3100 Clarendon Blvd., Ste. 620 Arlington, VA 22201
Steve Buffalo N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072	Steven Freckmann AGC-GM 1243 N. 10 th St., Suite 175 Milwaukee, WI 53205
Mark Gauf N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072	Matt Marcellis ACEA 17100 W Blue Mound Rd., #102 Brookfield, WI 53005
Shane Griesbach N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072	Tim Peterson Wisconsin Transportation Employers Council 1 East Main Street, Suite 300 Madison, WI 53703
Dan Sperberg N27 W23233 Roundy Drive Pewaukee, WI 53072	Thomas P. Wolf AEM P.O. Box 209 Butler, WI 53007-0209

- Employer contributions to the Plan are made based on collective bargaining agreements with the Union or other written agreements with the Trustees. Copies of those agreements may be obtained from the Trustees upon written request and are available for review at the Fund Office.
- A complete list of employers maintaining the Plan is available by contacting the Trustees and is available for review at the Fund Office.
- The following information is required to be communicated to you under the Pension Protection Act of 2006. Please read this information carefully.

Importance of Diversification

To help achieve long-term retirement security, you should give careful consideration to the benefits of a well-balanced and diversified investment portfolio. Spreading your assets among different types of investments can help you achieve a favorable rate of return, while minimizing your overall risk of losing money. This is because market or other economic conditions that cause one category of assets, or one particular security, to perform very well often cause another asset category, or another particular security, to perform poorly. If you invest more than 20% of your retirement savings in any one company

or industry, your savings may not be properly diversified. Although diversification is not a guarantee against loss, it is an effective strategy to help you manage investment risk.

In deciding how to invest your retirement savings, you should take into account all of your assets, including any retirement savings outside of the Plan. No single approach is right for everyone because, among other factors, individuals have different financial goals, different time horizons for meeting their goals, and different tolerances for risk.

It is also important to periodically review your investment portfolio, your investment objectives, and the investment options under the Plan to help ensure that your retirement savings will meet your retirement goals.

You may access the Department of Labor's website to obtain other sources of information on individual investing and diversification. For more information go to: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/laws-and-regulations/laws/pension-protection-act/investing-and-diversification.

Statements of Your Account

Reports on Your Plan Account

At the end of each calendar quarter, a statement will be provided to you in accordance with the requirements of applicable law. To help you keep up-to-date on the status of your Account, the statement will include the following:

- the amount you contributed to the Plan;
- the Employer contributions made on your behalf to the Plan;
- withdrawals, if any;
- administrative fees deducted from your Account during the calendar quarter;
- the total value of your Account;
- your vested percentage;
- the investment options you have selected;
- the earnings and/or losses on your investments;
- any restrictions on your right to direct investments;
- a notice of the importance of diversifying your investments.

You may also request a statement at any time by contacting John Hancock.

Claims Procedures

We hope there will never be a disagreement as to the amount owed to you under the Plan. However, if there is a disagreement, you (and your authorized representative, if any) must follow the Plan's claims procedure or you may forfeit certain legal rights to contest the decision.

The claims procedures described below apply to you and your authorized representative, if any (hereinafter collectively referred to as "you").

You must file any request for benefits in writing. Before filing your request, you may wish to examine any Plan records regarding your claim. This examination may occur only during regular working hours.

Initial claims should be addressed to the Trustees and submitted to the Fund Office. Decisions on initial claims will be made within 90 days after receipt by the Trustees. The Trustees may extend the 90-day period up to an additional 90 days where the nature of the benefit involved or other circumstances make such extension appropriate. You will be notified in advance of any extension, the reason the extension is needed, and the date a decision on your claim is expected to be made.

If your claim is denied in whole or in part, you will receive an explanation (written or electronic) setting forth (i) the reason for the denial, (ii) references to the Plan provision(s) on which the denial is based, (iii) if applicable, a description of any additional material or information you need to provide in order to obtain benefits, with an explanation of why it is needed, (iv) a description of the Plan's claim review procedures, and (v) a statement of your right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA if you file a written request for a reconsideration of the claim under such review procedures and the claim is denied on review.

You may request that the denied claim be reconsidered. All requests for reconsideration of denied claims are reviewed by the Trustees. You may appeal a denied claim by filing a written notice of appeal with the Trustees within 60 days after the claim is denied. You may submit written comments, documents, records, and other information relating to your claim. In connection with such review, you may review or receive copies of, upon request and free of charge, relevant documents and other information, and may submit issues and comments in writing. The Trustees will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information submitted without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial claim determination. The Trustees may hold a hearing or otherwise ascertain such facts as it deems necessary and will render a decision which will be binding upon both parties. The Trustees or a committee designated by the Trustees shall meet quarterly to render a determination on appeals received since the prior meeting, provided any appeal filed within the 30 day period preceding a meeting shall be decided at the next following quarterly meeting. If special circumstances require a delay in the decision, the decision shall be rendered no later than the third quarterly meeting following receipt of the appeal, and the Administrator shall notify the claimant of the reasons for the delay prior to the extension.

You will be notified of the Trustees decision (in writing or electronically). If your claim upon appeal is denied, the decision will include: the specific reason for the denial, including reference to the Plan provision(s) on which the denial is based; a description of your right to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all Plan documents, records and other information relevant to the claim; and a statement about your right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA; and a description of any contractual limitation period in bring civil action, and the latest date such civil action can be brought.

The decision of the Trustees, which has the authority to interpret the Plan and make factual determinations in connection with matters arising under the Plan, is final and binding.

Your ERISA Rights and Information

What are my rights under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974?

As a participant in the Plan, you are entitled to certain rights and protections under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA"). ERISA provides that all Plan participants are entitled to:

Receive Information About Your Plan and Benefits

- examine, without charge, at the Plan Administrator's office and at other specified locations, such as
 worksites and union halls, all documents governing the Plan, including insurance contracts and collective
 bargaining agreements, and a copy of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) filed by the Plan with
 the U.S. Department of Labor and available at the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee Benefits
 Security Administration.
- obtain, upon written request to the Plan Administrator, copies of documents governing the operation of the Plan, including insurance contracts and collective bargaining agreements, and copies of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) and updated summary plan description. The Plan Administrator may make a reasonable charge for the copies.
- receive a summary of the Plan's annual financial report. The Plan Administrator is required by law to furnish each participant with a copy of this summary annual report.
- obtain a statement telling you (a) the amounts credited to your Account under the Plan and (b) what
 your benefits would be under the Plan if you stop working as of that statement date. This statement is
 not required to be given more than once a year. The Plan must provide the statement free of charge.

Prudent Actions by Plan Fiduciaries

In addition to creating rights for Plan participants, ERISA imposes duties upon the people who are responsible for the operation of the Plan. The people who operate the Plan, called "fiduciaries" of the Plan, have a duty to do so prudently and in the interest of you and other Plan participants and beneficiaries. No one, including your employer, your union, or any other person, may fire you or otherwise discriminate against you in any way to prevent you from obtaining a benefit under the Plan or exercising your rights under ERISA.

Enforce Your Rights

If your claim for a benefit is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you have the right to know why this was done, to obtain copies of documents relating to the decision without charge, and to appeal any denial, all within certain time schedules.

Under ERISA, there are steps you can take to enforce the above rights. For instance, if you request a copy of Plan documents or the latest annual report from the Plan and do not receive them within 30 days, you may file suit in a federal court. In such a case, the court may require the Plan Administrator to provide the materials and pay you up to \$110 a day until you receive the materials, unless the materials were not sent because of reasons beyond the control of the Plan Administrator. If you have a claim for benefits which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you may file suit in a state or federal court. In addition, if you disagree with the Plan's decision or lack thereof concerning the qualified status of a domestic relations order or a medical child support order, you may file suit in federal court. If it should happen that Plan fiduciaries misuse the Plan's money, or if you are discriminated against for asserting your rights, you may seek assistance from the U.S. Department of Labor, or you may file suit in a federal court. The court will decide who should pay court costs and legal fees. If you are successful, the court may order the person you have sued to pay these costs and fees. If you lose, the court may order you to pay these costs and fees, for example, if it finds your claim is frivolous.

Assistance With Your Questions

If you have any questions about the Plan, you should contact the Plan Administrator. If you have any questions about this statement or about your rights under ERISA, or if you need assistance in obtaining

documents from the Plan Administrator, you should contact the nearest office of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, listed in your telephone directory or the Division of Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210. You may also obtain certain publications about your rights and responsibilities under ERISA by calling the publications hotline of the Employee Benefits Security Administration.

How will my participation in the Plan affect my IRA?

According to the current federal tax laws, you can continue to maintain IRAs while you are participating in the Plan, and you can make after-tax contributions to your IRA in amounts permitted by the federal tax laws. But your ability to make tax-deductible contributions to an IRA for any year in which you participate in the Plan is restricted according to your income level. See the instructions to Form 1040 or contact your tax advisor for more information.

What happens if the Plan is amended or terminated?

The Trustees reserve the right to amend the Plan, or to terminate the Plan, at any time. However, no amendment can reduce the amount in your Account. If the Plan terminates, your Account will remain 100% vested, that is, nonforfeitable. The Plan is for the exclusive benefit of its participants and, therefore, money cannot go back to the Contributing Employers or the Union or Association because of the Plan's termination.

Upon termination of the Plan, the Fund will generally liquidate assets and distribute the value of your Account to you (subject to IRS requirements).

Is there any way I can lose Plan benefits?

Yes, there are a few ways in which you could lose expected benefits such as the following, among others:

Investment losses and administrative expenses

The value of your Account depends on the performance of your investments under the Plan. Your Account balance is subject to both gain and loss due to investment results. If you receive a distribution at a time when the value of your investments has declined, you may not receive a distribution that is as large as you had hoped. Also, certain administrative expenses of the Plan may be charged directly to your Account and will reduce your Account balance.

Qualified Domestic Relations Orders

In general, your Account cannot be attached or paid to creditors or to anyone other than yourself. However, under federal law, the Plan Administrator is required to obey a Qualified Domestic Relations Order ("QDRO"). This is a decree or domestic relations order ("Order") issued by a court that satisfies certain requirements under the Internal Revenue Code. A QDRO may require that all or a portion of your vested Account be paid to your spouse, former spouse, child or other dependent ("Alternate Payee"). The Plan Administrator, in accordance with its QDRO procedures, will notify you of its receipt of any Order affecting you. In addition, the Plan Administrator will determine the validity of such Order and notify you of its determination. You may obtain a copy of such procedures, without charge, by contacting John Hancock or the Plan Administrator. In addition, you should request a copy of the Plan's model QDRO and QDRO materials by contacting John Hancock before an Order is drafted and submitted to court for execution. Please note that any fee charged to your Account for the review and

qualification of an Order will be shared equally between you and the Alternate Payee unless otherwise specified in the Order.

Should I be aware of any other aspects of the Plan?

In an effort to keep retirement plans from favoring "key employees," Congress has put a complicated set of rules in the Internal Revenue Code that apply to any "top-heavy" retirement plan. Stated simply, the Plan will be "top-heavy" if the value of Accounts belonging to key employees (generally certain officers and shareholders) exceeds 60% of the value of the Accounts for all participants.

Each year, the Plan will be tested to determine if it is top-heavy. Although, it is unlikely that the Plan will become top-heavy, if it does, special rules will become effective which could require the Contributing Employer to make additional contributions on your behalf.

The Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, a federal agency that insures defined benefit plans, does not insure this type of plan. The government has exempted plans like ours from such insurance because all contributions go directly to your Account and you will remain 100% vested in your Account if the Plan is ever terminated.

For more information about your investment options, please consult the prospectuses.

J:\TH7103\DMS\ERISA Request 0121-Conversion Docs\SPD V2 July 27, 2021.docx